
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be 
asked by a member of the public  
Contact:  Cherry Foreman  
Tel: 01270 686463 
E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Community Governance Review  
Sub-Committee 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday 7th October 2014 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA 
 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 

 

1. Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman   
 
 This being the first meeting of the Sub-Committee this municipal year, it is the 

occasion for the appointment of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman.  In order to 
maintain continuity the Sub-Committee previously agreed to retain its existing 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman, these being Councillors David Marren and Peter 
Groves respectively.  The Sub-Committee is now asked to make its appointments 
for 2013/14. 
 

2. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

4. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is 

allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relating to 
the work of the body in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for 
up to 5 minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of 
time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a number of 
speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use this facility. 
However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at 
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with 
that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given. 
 

5. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 February 2014 as a correct 

record. 
 

6. Macclesfield Community Governance Review  (Pages 5 - 70) 
 
 The Sub Committee is requested to consider the feedback received from the 

consultation and to make a recommendation to the Constitution Committee 
regarding the next steps of the Review.  
  



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Community Governance Review Sub-Committee 

held on Wednesday, 26th February, 2014 in The Silk Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield 
SK10 1EA 

 
PRESENT 
 
Councillor D Marren (Chairman) 
Councillor P Groves (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors G Baxendale, J Jackson and L Smetham (as substitute). 
 
Councillors in attendance: 
Councillors K Edwards and D Neilson. 
 
Officers in attendance: 
Lindsey Parton – Registration and Services and Business Manager 
Rose Hignett – Senior Electoral Services Officer 
Cherry Foreman – Governance and Democratic Services Officer 

 
 

32 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Murphy and P Whiteley. 

 
33 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
34 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  

 
Liz Braithwaite asked whether in the event of each ward being given the option 
of voting for a Town or Parish Council would the option also be given for each to 
have an individual Service Delivery Committee.   The Chairman responded that 
he felt such an option would be unworkable. 
 
Councillor Janet Jackson interceded at this stage and asked for it to be 
recorded that she was most dissatisfied at the way in which the direction of the 
community review in Macclesfield was being pushed by some Members of the 
Sub-Committee and by the leading political group.  She stated she was the only 
Macclesfield Councillor on the Committee, and, despite being best placed to 
know and understand the views of the community, she considered she was being 
consistently ignored.  The Chairman responded that the decision would be made 
by taking account of the public consultation and other key factors and, ultimately, 
by the Constitution Committee and full Council. 
 
Richard Watson commented on the voting paper tabled prior to the meeting and 
suggested that Q1b should be amended to say ‘I want a parish/town council’; this 
was suggested in the light of the previous experience in Crewe when it became 
apparent that people did not realise that a town council was a form of parish 
council. The Chairman responded that initially it was in fact necessary to form a 
parish council and only then could it vote for itself to be known as a town council. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



35 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2014 were considered.  With 
reference to Minute 30 (Next Stage of the Review) Councillor J Jackson said she 
had asked for it to be recorded that she had voted against the ballot paper being 
drafted to allow each individual ward to vote upon becoming an individual parish. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2014 be approved subject to 
the inclusion of the amendment detailed above. 

 
36 THE ROLE OF AN ENHANCED MACCLESFIELD LOCAL SERVICE 

DELIVERY COMMITTEE  

 
Further to the last meeting consideration was given to the proposed role of an 
Enhanced Service Delivery Committee and Assembly meetings; this followed the 
Macclesfield Local Service Delivery Committee (LSDC) having been asked to 
consider what it would consider should be the role of an Enhanced LSDC; an 
appendix to the report summarised their comments.   
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that the comments of the LSDC had now been 
included in the draft proposals for the role of an Enhanced LSDC and its Terms of 
Reference.  Members considered each of the papers circulated and made a 
number of comments and changes on each.  These have been appended to the 
minutes for reference.  The Constitution Committee would consider the 
recommendations from the Sub-Committee and be responsible for making the 
final decision as to what was included. 
 
The Sub-Committee was informed that further legal advice was currently awaited 
to ensure that the proposed Terms of Reference met the necessary legal 
requirements and that they would be amended to take any such advice into 
account.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the proposals for the Role of an Enhanced Service Delivery Committee, and 
the Terms of Reference, be amended as now requested prior to consideration by 
the Constitution Committee.  

 
 

37 DRAFT LEAFLET TO SUPPORT THE REVIEW  

 
The Sub-Committee was asked to consider and agree the wording for the main 
leaflet to support the review.  It had been updated to reflect comments made at 
the last meeting and also those of the Macclesfield Local Service Delivery 
Committee on 23 January.  It was reported that ChALC (the Cheshire Association 
of Local Councils) had been consulted and any changes necessitated by their 
response would be incorporated in the leaflet.     
 
Some concern was expressed at the level of detail now included in the leaflet.  It 
was explained that the information had been expanded to answer previous 
concerns in respect of the possible lack of understanding of the general public 
regarding the options available and the process required.  A summarised version 

Page 2



of the leaflet could be prepared and sent out to electors to accompany the voting 
paper.   
 
With reference to financial implications included it was noted that some indicative 
costs were now available and that these would be included when the leaflet was 
considered by the Constitution Committee. With regard to the costs of other Town 
and Parish Councils, given as examples, it was noted that the differences in the 
services they each provided, and the resulting costs per property, served as a 
good example of how each individual Town or Parish Council could be run in the 
manner most appropriate to its own area, and to the facilities, services and 
resources available to it.   
 
The Sub-Committee considered the leaflet in detail and made a number if 
comments and changes.  These have been appended to the minutes for 
reference.   
 
As the amended documentation was now to be considered by the Constitution 
Committee it was requested that any further comments be sent direct to the 
Registration and Business Services Manager, and that authority be delegated to 
the Chairman to approve the amended document prior to its submission.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That any additional comments be sent direct to the Registration and Business 
Services Manager and that the amended document be approved by the 
Chairman prior to its submission to the Constitution Committee.   

 
38 ASSISTANCE FOR THE SUB-COMMITTEE  

 
The Registration and Business Services Manager informed the Committee that 
ChALC was in receipt of a small grant from the Department for Communities and 
Local Government for use with community groups who wished to support the 
creation of a Town or Parish Council in their area.  ChALC had also offered their 
assistance as the review progressed and would be happy to attend future 
meetings of the Sub-Committee as required.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the update be noted and that the offer of attendance of a representative 
from ChALC at future meetings of the Sub-Committee be welcomed. 

 
39 SECOND STAGE CONSULTATION  

 
Consideration was given to the draft wording of the voting paper for the second 
stage of the consultation, a copy of which was circulated prior to the meeting.   
 
It was suggested that a clear explanation needed to be given as to the meaning 
of town and parish Council.  It was reported that in addition to the voting paper a 
leaflet would also be sent to electors and it was intended that this would contain a 
detailed explanation of such points and that the Constitution Committee would 
agree the content and detail of the literature to be circulated at that time.   The 
Sub-Committee was advised that there would also be further publicity measures 
in place to encourage people to vote. 
 

Page 3



RESOLVED 
 
That the wording of the draft ballot paper be approved for use for the second 
stage of the consultation. 
 
Councillor J Jackson asked for it to be noted that she had voted against this 
resolution as she did not support the option of the 7 separate Parish Councils. 
 

 
40 PUBLICITY ARRANGEMENTS  

 
A discussion took place on the publicity to be put in place at the time of the 
second stage of the consultation and it was confirmed that suggestions made at 
previous meetings would be further explored.  Publicity measures would include 
the use of twitter, updating the website, advance public notices in the press, 
public meetings through ChALC, and the distribution of literature locally.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That approval be given to the suggested publicity measures detailed above. 

 
41 PROJECT PLAN  

 
Consideration was given to the project plan and the deadlines for the various 
stages leading up to the second stage of the consultation.  In response to a 
question concerning the procedure in the event of the results of the ballot not 
providing any clear preference, Members were informed that the Sub-Committee 
would initially consider the results along with any additional information that came 
forward at that time and that the matter would then be considered by the 
Constitution Committee.  Ultimately, however, it would be for the Council to 
decide on the best way forward. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 

 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 12.50 pm 
 

Councillor D Marren (Chairman) 
 

 

Page 4



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
Community Governance Review Sub Committee  
 

 
Date of Meeting: 

 
7 October 2014  

Report of: Head of Governance and Democratic Services  
Subject/Title: Macclesfield Community Governance Review 
  

                                                                  
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 The Macclesfield Community Governance Review commenced in June 2013          

with the Community Governance Review Sub Committee leading the review 
under powers delegated to it by the Constitution Committee. This report 
provides Members with an outline of the process followed in respect of this 
Review. It is based upon statutory guidance: “Guidance on Community 
Governance Reviews” issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government and the Electoral Commission.     

 
1.2 The first stage of consultation was conducted in June/ July 2013 and 

consisted of consultation with stakeholders and the public. The consultation 
focussed upon 7 different options (no change; Parish/ Town Council(s); 
Community Forums; Community Development Trusts; Neighbourhood 
Management; Residents’ and Tenants’ Organisations and Community 
Associations). Local organisations, (including businesses, political and 
religious organisations, and community groups) were contacted by letter and 
invited to express their views. 8 public meetings were held in each of the 
Borough wards, which were attended by 114 people out of a possible 
electorate of 39,750 (i.e. 0.3%). Publicity for the first stage of consultation 
included press releases to local press and media, a public notice in the 
Macclesfield Express, exhibition boards at the Town Hall and distribution of 
information on several days within the Grosvenor Centre. A consultation 
feedback form was made available in hard copy and electronic formats.  
Information was provided on the website and in various local newsletters. 
Flyers and public notices were widely distributed with assistance from local 
ward members, the Town Centre Manager and the Local Area Partnership 
Team.  

 
1.3 92 responses to the stage 1 consultation were received (0.24% of the total 

electorate). Of these responses 68 expressed an opinion on the 7 proposed 
options. 44 people expressed a wish to see a Town Council; 10 people 
expressed a wish to see multiple parish councils; and 4 people wished to see 
no change.  

 
1.4 On the basis of the feedback received from the Stage 1 consultation, the Sub 

Committee agreed that the second stage of consultation should be in respect 
of the options of Parishing, and an Enhanced Macclesfield Local Service 
Delivery Committee. The proposal for an Enhanced Local Service Delivery 
Committee stemmed from discussions at the various public meetings held 

Page 5 Agenda Item 6



during the first stage of consultation. In terms of the option for Parishing, this 
was put forward for further consideration, as some level of support had been 
demonstrated for one or more parish councils to be created. The Sub 
Committee considered the communities and interests in Macclesfield, and 
subsequently agreed that electors in each ward should be given the 
opportunity to consider whether they wished to see a Single Parish / Town 
council created for the whole of Macclesfield, or a parish council based on 
their Borough Ward boundary; in addition to the option for an Enhanced Local 
Service Delivery Committee. This approach was endorsed by the Constitution 
Committee on 1 May 2014.    

 
1.5 The second stage of consultation took place from 2 June to 28 July 2014. 
 
1.6 A public notice was issued in the press at the start of the consultation period, 

and information about the Review was provided on the Council’s website with 
a direct link from the front page. Copies of a more detailed 15 paged 
explanatory leaflet were also made available at Macclesfield Town Hall and at 
Macclesfield Library. A telephone point of contact was provided in the 
literature posted to all electors to assist with any queries.  A4 notices to 
publicise the next stage of the Review were distributed locally with the 
assistance from the Town Centre Manager and copies were send to local 
ward Councillors for their information.      

 
1.7 All local government electors in the area, and all 16 and 17 year olds on the 

electoral register were sent a postal voting paper, and a four paged summary 
leaflet. Electors, and any person with an interest in the Review, were also 
able to submit written representations, by post or email during this period.  

 
1.8 The results of the voting and representations received during this second 

stage of consultation are attached to this report (Appendices A and B). 6448 
electors responded by returning their voting papers (16.15% of the 
electorate). 35 written representations were received.     

 
1.9 The representations and feedback received from the Stage 1 Consultation 

were previously considered by the Sub Committee at meetings held on 15 
August and 16 October 2013. A summary is attached (Appendix C). Copies 
of the individual representations received during the Stage 1 consultation are 
available for public inspection upon request. Copies are also deposited in the 
Members’ Rooms at Westfields, Sandbach and at the Town Hall, 
Macclesfield.     

 
2.0  Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Sub Committee is requested to consider the feedback received from the 

consultation and to make a recommendation to the Constitution Committee 
regarding the next steps of the Review.  

  

Page 6



3.0 Reasons for Recommendations   
 
3.1.1 The Review has now concluded two stages of public consultation and 

consideration now needs to be given to the next steps of the Review.   
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1  Wards covering the unparished area of Macclesfield.    
  
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1  As Above. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications  
 
6.1   None identified. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
6.1     The cost associated with conducting the Community Governance Review will 

be required to be met from existing budgetary resources within Governance 
and Democratic Services.   

 
7.0  Legal Implications  
 
7.1     The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (‘the Act’) 

devolves the power to take decisions about matters such as the creation of 
parishes and their electoral arrangements to local government and local 
communities. 

 
7.2 The Act provides for a principal council (in this case, Cheshire East Council) 

to carry out a community governance review at any time, as well as providing 
for certain circumstances in which a review must be carried out.  The Act 
further allows principal councils to determine the terms of reference of a 
community governance review. 

 
7.3 The Act requires consultation with local government electors in the area 

under review and others whom appear to the principal council to have an 
interest in the review. 

 
7.4 Statutory Guidance is available on community governance reviews and must 

be followed by principal councils. 
 
7.5 Consultation has been undertaken in respect of this proposal.  The general 

principles that must be followed when consulting are well established: 

• The consultation must be at a time when proposals are still at a 
formative stage. 

• Consultation documents must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to 
enable intelligent consideration and response.  

Page 7



• Adequate time must be given for consideration and response. 

• The product of consultation must be conscientiously taken into account 
in finalising any proposals 

8.2 Whilst the Committee will only make recommendations and is therefore not 
the decision maker it is nevertheless important that the Committee is aware of 
the consultation results and takes them into account when considering this 
matter.   

      
8.0  Risk Management  
 
8.1 The review has been conducted with due regard to the Government’s 

Guidance on the conduct of Community Governance Reviews.    
 
9.0  Background and Options 
 
9.1.1 There is a statutory requirement to consult local government electors in the 

area under review as part of any Community Government Review conducted, 
together with others with an interest in the Review. The Sub Committee 
therefore agreed to consult all electors in the unparished area of Macclesfield, 
for the second stage of consultation, by sending out a voting paper, based 
upon the options explained above. As emphasised in the report to the 
Constitution Committee on 1 May, the results of the consultation with electors 
should be treated as an advisory poll. This is purely a means of consultation, 
which should be considered along side other views and opinions received and 
evidence collected, having regard to the statutory key criteria:  

 
- that community governance in the area will be “reflective of the identities;  

           
           and 
 

- that interests of the community in the area” and will be “effective and 
convenient”.    

 
9.2 Key considerations in meeting the criteria as part of the Community 

Governance Review include: 

− The impact of community governance arrangements on community 
cohesion 

− The size, population and boundaries of a local community Parishes 
should reflect distinctive and recognisable communities of interest with 
their own sense of identity 

− The degree to which the proposals offer a sense of place and identity 
for all residents 

− The ability to deliver quality services economically and efficiently 
providing users with a democratic voice 

− The degree to which proposals would be viable in terms of a unit of 
local government providing at least some local services that are 
convenient, easy to reach and accessible to local people. 

Page 8



 
10.0 Access to Information 
 

       The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer: 

  
  Name:           Mrs Lindsey Parton  
  Designation: Registration Service and Business Manager  
      Tel No:          01270 686477           

Email:  lindsey.parton@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward Name

Total 

Number 

of 

electors 

Total 

Number 

Voting

Total % 

voting N
u

m
b

e
r 

V
o

te
d

 f
o

r 

LS
D

%
 V

o
te

d
 f

o
r 

LS
D

N
u

m
b

e
r 

V
o

te
d

 f
o

r 

P
a

ri
sh

in
g

%
 V

o
te

d
 f

o
r 

P
a

ri
sh

in
g

N
u

m
b

e
r 

V
o

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

T
o

w
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

%
 V

o
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
T

o
w

n
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

N
u

m
b

e
r 

 V
o

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

P
a

ri
sh

 b
y
 W

a
rd

%
  
V

o
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

a
ri

sh
 

b
y
 W

a
rd

N
u

m
b

e
r 

 o
f 

In
v
a

li
d

s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 S

p
o

il
s)

%
  
In

v
a

li
d

s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 S

p
o

il
s)

Broken Cross and Upton 6,932 1156 16.68% 320 4.62% 821 11.84% 578 8.34% 243 3.51% 15 0.22%

Central 6,529 853 13.06% 185 2.83% 658 10.08% 490 7.50% 168 2.57% 10 0.15%

East 3,582 594 16.58% 93 2.60% 492 13.74% 380 10.61% 112 3.13% 9 0.25%

Hurdsfield 3,487 478 13.71% 94 2.70% 376 10.78% 208 5.97% 168 4.82% 8 0.23%

South 5,891 848 14.39% 194 3.29% 634 10.76% 503 8.54% 131 2.22% 20 0.34%

Tytherington 7,149 1473 20.60% 329 4.60% 1122 15.69% 664 9.29% 458 6.41% 22 0.31%

West and Ivy 6,355 1046 16.46% 234 3.68% 804 12.65% 606 9.54% 198 3.12% 8 0.13%

Total 39,925 6448 16.15% 1449 3.63% 4907 12.29% 3429 8.59% 1478 3.70% 92 0.23%

P
age 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



                                Appendix C  

MACCLESFIELD COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW  

STAGE 1 CONSULTATION RESPONSES  

92 responses were received to the stage 1 consultation, of which 68 expressed a view on the options as detailed below.   

   

Name  Comments on Options  No Change/ 
Maintain Status 
Quo 

Single Town 
Council 

Multiple 
Parishes 

Other 

Individual 
representations 
received by email / 
letter 

 x1 x8 x1 x2  
 no views 
expressed on the 
options 

Summary of 
Responses from the 
on line / hand copy 
feedback forms    

 x2 x36 x8 1x community 
forum 
3x Community 
Development 
Trust 
2x community 
associations  
2x other  

2x late representations 
reported to CGR Sub 
Committee on 16 Oct 
2013 

 x1  x1  

TOTALS  x4 x44 x10 x10 

 

P
age 69



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous meeting
	6 Macclesfield Community Governance Review
	Appendix A -Macc CGR ballot Results 2014
	appendix b
	Appendix C - Summary of stage 1 consultation responses - breakdown


